
          

 

 

VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 15, 2022 
3:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.villagewalkofbonitaspringscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Town Center at VillageWalk of Bonita Springs  

15321 Latitude Drive 
Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
November 15, 2022 

3:00 p.m. 
 
   

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. August 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing……………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget…….Page 6 

I. Engineering Report 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 1 of 4 
 

VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 16, 2022 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The August 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Village Walk Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 3:00 p.m. at the Town Center at VillageWalk of 
Bonita Springs located at 15321 Latitude Drive, Bonita Springs, Florida 34135. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Naples Daily News on October 6, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors present: 
 
Chairman Terry L. Peters Present 
Vice-Chairman Laura Ray Present 
Supervisor Susan Price Present 
Supervisor Matt Jacovelli Absent 
Supervisor Mike Hertz Present 
 
Staff members in virtual attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely (via phone) Special District Services 
General Counsel Joe Brown (via phone) Kutak Rock 
District Engineer Chris Wright (via phone) RWA, Inc. 
 
Also present were Trish Baker, Town Manager, Len Boucher and Michelle Krizen of Special 
District Services, Inc. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Krizen asked for the board to consider adding her as an Assistant Secretary since she will be 
running the meetings and signing documents on behalf of the District.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Ray, seconded by Ms. Price and passed unanimously adding 
Michelle Krizen as an Assistant Secretary, as presented. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Boucher questioned the pond maintenance, stating that he felt the use of Rip Rap was not a 
long term solution.  The Rip Rap washed away and needs replacement.  He opined that there 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

were other alternatives that would not require frequent replacements.  Mr. Wright has not had 
any conversations with the HOA on this issue, but will reach out to the HOA about alternatives.  
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The May 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hertz, seconded by Ms. Ray and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the May 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
The Regular Board Meeting was recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the 
Naples Daily News on July 27, 2022, and August 3, 2022, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final 
Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2022-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-02 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE 
VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE 
ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2022, AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Ray, seconded by Mr. Hertz and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-02, as presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Annual 
Assessment 
 
Resolution No. 2022-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND IMPOSING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; 
PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS;  
CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Hertz, seconded by Ms. Ray and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-03, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2022-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR 
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING 
THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Ray, seconded by Mr. Hertz and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2022-04, amended to reflect eliminating the December 
meeting. 
 
 2.  Consider District Counsel Fee Agreement – Kutak Rock 
 
Mr. Brown went over the agreement.  There were no questions from the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Ray, seconded by Mr. Hertz and passed unanimously approving the 
District Counsel Fee Agreement with Kutak Rock, as presented. 
 
J. ENGINEERING REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright advised Stormwater Needs Analysis had been submitted to Lee County, as required 
by law. He noted that this was a template report with a series of exhibits showing the stormwater 
drainage system. 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule of September 20, 2022, October 18, 
2022, and November 15, 2022.  She stated that the October meeting would most likely include 
the amended budget.  She noted with the November meeting being held two weeks after the 
election, the current Board Members would attend that meeting with the new Board Members 
being sworn in at the January 17, 2023, meeting since the December meeting has been deleted 
from the schedule.  There was a consensus to cancel the September meeting and send inquiries 
for the others. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Hertz asked Mr. Wright about the neighbors spraying Detol.  Mr. Hertz read the DDT report 
and noted that it could kill cats and birds and asked if residents should be concerned about this 
getting into the lakes.  Mr. Hertz would have to look into it since he is not familiar with the 
product.  Mr. Hertz will send an email to Mr. Wright who will look into it and check with water 
consultants.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Ray, 
seconded by Ms. Price and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 3:20 
p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN 
AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET 
(“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the VillageWalk of Bonita Springs 
Community Development District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to 
impose special assessments upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 15th day of November, 2022. 
 

 

ATTEST: VILLAGEWALK OF BONITA SPRINGS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 6



     Village Walk Of Bonita Springs 
   Community Development District

   Amended Final Budget For
   Fiscal Year 2021/2022

   October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11


	VillageWalk Community Development District - November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget




